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THE EARLY IRISH IN NEWPORT COUNTY: THE
1800'S

(Part | - 1800 to 1850)

As we have seen in our earlier discussions the Irish had come into Newport
County since the European settlement of the area. (The museum Newsletters, Fall
1998 and Winter, 1999) Their numbers were relatively small, however, and very diffi-
cult except for the few official records of the Colony and Town of Newport. In the ear-
ly 1800's, however, several events drastically changed the immigration aspect for the
Irish. The first event was the commercial opening of the Portsmouth coal mine. In
his interesting book, "Historical Tracts of the Town of Portsmouth", John T. Pierce re-
views the history of the mine, and points out that although coal was known to be
available at that site, it was not until 1808, when the General Assembly of the State
granted a lottery to raise $10,000 in search of coal, was a commercial operation be-
gun. The Aquidneck Coal Company and the Rhode Island Coal Company were
formed in 1809 and operations started. Pierce states that - "most of the miners came
from the Allihies copper mines of Ireland and were highly skilled in their occupations".
(Others came from Cornwall and Pennsylvania). IR aee _ -
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The Newport Mercury
reported this on 18
September, 1869.

(see article - courtesy
of Pat Murphy) The
date that chapel was
B - * § built is unknown, but it
Portsmouth Coal Miners circa 1904 "Historical Tracts of the Town [ iS apparent that there
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here for, as was noted in St. Joseph's Church History (1924), a Father Matignon vis-
ited the area in 1811, and Bishop Cheverus visited in 1813. Incidentally, the mines
were in operation off and on for the next 114 years, closing in 1913.

FORT ADAMS

The construction of a new, vastly enlarged Fort Adams begun in 1824, and
continuing into the 1850's, signaled the establishment of the core of the Irish commu-
nity in the City of Newport.. The construction of the Fort was authorized by Congress
after the War of 1812 which saw the English easily invading our coast, even burning
our young Capitol in Washington. Fort Adams construction was a massive undertak-
ing, requiring many hundreds of skilled and unskilled workers, and at several periods
during the work, the US. Army, responsible for the building, sent teams of recruiters
to Ireland for skilled masonry and brick layers. Fort Adams records show that at one
period there were upwards of 350 Irish workers engaged. It was during this period
that the Irish established themselves in Newport's 5th Ward area, it being reasonably
close to the work site. (and later, to work at the "Cottages” on Bellevue Avenue).

THE FAMINE

An event of historic and tragic consequences had begun to unfold in Ireland
itself. While there had been earlier potato crop failures, in the 1810's and 1820's,
nothing of the massive crop failures of 1845 - 1848 had ever occurred, so that En-
glish Government was totally unprepared, and many say, not really caring enough to
prepare for and handie the disaster that followed for the Irish. The resuits were, of
course, a massive outflowing of Irish to North America, with many immigrants settling
in Newport County during the 1840's and 1850's.

Patrick Conley, in his Heritage booklet, "The Irish In Rhode Island”, points out
that in the first Federal Census of 1850, Rhode Island had 23,111 foreign -born out of
a population of 147,545, and of these 23 thousand, 69 percent, or 15,944 were Irish!
In Newport the Federal Census of 1850 shows that of a population of 9860, there
were 715 persons (by an unofficial count by the author) born in Ireland.

THE FIRST IRISH PARISH ESTABLISHED

In 1828 the Diocese of Boston purchased an old school house on the corner of
Barney and Mt. Vernon Streets in Newport and converted it into the first church in the
state. The church was set up here to support those Irish immigrants who were work-
ing in Portsmouth coal mines and at Fort Adams. The little building was quickly
deemed too small, and in 1837 a new wooden church was dedicated on the site. By
1846 there was a congregation of 375, and in 1847 a new site was purchased for a
new church. Construction was begun, with mostly volunteer labor, by the Irish work-
ing at Fort Adams. This new church was dedicated to St. Mary of the Isle in 1852.

THE IRISH IN NEWPORT COUNTY - 1850-1950'S - In the next Newsletter
V. Arnold



DEDICATION AND BLESSING OF THE BARNEY STREET/ST. JOSEPH
CEMETERY

Despite a cold and blustery day, more than one hundred Museum members,
friends and neighbors turned out for our formal dedication and blessing of the resto-
ration work at the Barney Street Cemetery on Sunday, March 28th. The program in-
cluded bagpipe music by John Sullivan, a welcome from the City of Newport by
Mayor David Gordon, remarks by Dan Snydacker, Executive Director of the Newport
Historical Society, and remarks and Blessing of the Cemetery and restoration by the
Most Reverend Robert E. Mulvee, DD, Bishop of Providence. President Arnold Be-
gan the ceremonies by thanking the many individuals who worked on the project for
the last year, and traced the history of the site, the founding of the First Irish parish in
the state. The Newport Artillery provided the honor guard, and following the program
members and friends adjourned to the LaForge Restaurant for a reception where our
super host, Paul Crowley and his crew provided the crowd with the usual delicious
LaForge fare.
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THE MUSEUM'S SECOND ANNUAL MEETING

The second Annual Meeting of the Museum took place on Sunday, March 7th
at the LaForge Casino Restaurant. About thirty members and friends gathered for
the excellent LaForge breakfasts hosted by Paul Crowley prior to the twelve noon
meeting. First Vice President Bob McKenna ably substituted for our ill speaker, Ray
McKenna, President of the Irish Famine Memorial Committee. Bob gave us a nice
overview of the new Heritage Harbor Museum taking shape in Providence, which will
include the Irish Famine Memorial. President Arnold reviewed the past years' activi-
ties and urged all to attend the upcoming dedication and blessing of the restored
Barney Street Cemetery - scheduled for March 28th. Under new business, Maria
Carroll, chair of the Nominating Committee presented the recommendation for the
Board of Officers for the 1999 - 2000 (March) year. The nominees were duly elected
and are:

President: Vincent Arnold

First Vice President; Robert McKenna

Second Vice President: Elliot Carter

Secretary: Margaret Ahearn

Treasurer: Barbara Donnelly
Also elected to the Board of Directors were:

John Booth

Maria Carroll

Rita Clarke

Kathleen Connell

Paul Crowley

Michael J. Behan

Thomas N. Kelly llI

Thomas Mahoney

Edward McGrath

Martin Murphy I

Patrick F. Murphy

Judge Florence Murray .
David F. Roderick

Andrew Behan Ancient Order of Hibernians
Honorary Director Hon. J. Joseph Garrahy

IRISH EMBASSY ON THE WEB

The Irish Embassy in Washington, D.C. has announced a new way to keep up
with the news from and about Ireland. Its newly-established web-site (at http://mwww.i-
relandemb.org/) will act as a valuable resource for those seeking general information
on a range of issues relating to Ireland, including the peace process in Northern Ire-
land, the economy and Irish foreign policy. It will provide a source of practical in-
formation about obtaining passports/visas, applying for citizenship, tracing your
ancestors and will also serve as an effective gateway to other web-sites relating to
Ireland. (June/July 1999 Irish America Magazine)



THE EARLY IRISH IN NEWPORT COUNTY

The fale seems to have been more destructive on
this Island than any place in its whole course. :
Bbdl]z]cnd received a pretty severe touch, and sev-
eral dwelling houses and barny are destroyed. The !
Free Wil Bapeist Chuech at the West tide of the}:
Island, ﬁ'u blown dowsn. It was buile in 1867, and;
cost: ;bq'?: $2c000.
Middletsws—William Sanford's house had the xinJ

toof takpn off, and the family was obliged to take This article regarding a fierce

shelter at a neighbor’s, A chimncy was blawn over -
storm that occured September 8th, 1869

on to the roof of Pardon Brown's house, and brake .
three tidbers. Thdseven large trees i front of Geo. appeared in the Newport Mercury,

B. Wearer's house were all prostrated. Nathaniel September 18th,1869.
Potter's barn was partially demolished. A new house
at Three! Mile Corner, belonging to Mrs. Taggart,
demolished 5 end of Cyras Peckham's barn torn outj;
Robinsos P. Barker's bara down, as also that of the :
widow Peckham; fence on South and East of Falr
: Ground Hown ; cupala on barns of Peleg Sherman and |
Wﬂﬁlm Peckham blown off; chimney of Daniel
Congdon’s house down. :

Purtwcuth—The Catholic Churce near the coal:
mines, ubed 23 a schoolhouse, was raiicd from iu%
foandation and weat to pieces ip iﬁtc:n minutes aﬁcr}
oac hundred chitdren had lefcff” The beacon is gone |
at Bristol Ferry, and the small bridge at Ferry Neck. |
The dafiage to the fishing boats at Portsmouth and !
Tiverton is great, yachu and boats being straggled 311;E
albag the shore. The Bristol Femy giist mill was |
blown over. - Orchards suffered severely, whole rows ;
of trees being torn up by the rootr.  Part ot a chim-
n:fy was blown off of Captain Jobn Manchmcr“f
héuse; eight large apple trees in his orchard torn!
uﬂ”by the mou, snd two broken off. The chimney|
od Captain Sherman| house, blown off dowa to thej
ro-bf A shed blown away at Giles Lawton's, one
gonﬁng to Joseph Anthony, one at St Mary’s

urch, and another at the Christian Church. A
batn prostrated on the farm’at thexGles, occupied by}
William D. C. Main. A fine jacht, lying in the
Eéat river, owned by the Barstows, weat ashore »nd
'l:: destroyed,and a fishing smpack belonging to B L
Williams went ashore. Two barns were unroofed on
thq place owned and o¢cupied By Zaccheus and Peter
Chise. The roof of Benjamin C. Sherman's house
was taken off; the family had to fle to the bara for
‘il.hétzr. Cn‘:;’lge house down and barn shattered.—
ThE roof of lliam Anthony’s mill is off.  Willlam
Gilbe® crib blown over; also Barn destroyed 2ad two

Killed. William A. Chace's barn dowan, and

oad horse killed. Leander Boyd's bara down. On: This picture of the mission
farm of Pck;f.'l‘?mruon, _tb: endofx.mble: chapel in Melville. (from the
wad blown out and 33 trees uprooced. St. Joseph's Chureh book,

he draw at the old Stone MBridge was washed

2 fmd the timbers drifted overto the Hammocks- ges— 086



From the Museum Library
The Museum was fortunate recently to have received an anonymous gift of seven fine
books and several maps of the Cork/Bantry area. The newly acquired books are:

The End of Hidden Ireland

Rebellion, Famine & Emigration PROGRAM
Robert James Acally 1995 for the
DEDICATION AND BLESSING

More Irish Families

of the
Edward Ward MaclLysaght
(with essays on Irish Chieftains) 1996 RESTORATIONSWORE

at the

The Irish in America ST. JOSEPH/“BARNEY STREET”
Edited by Michael Coffey 1997 CEMETERY
The Irish Century
Photographic History
Michael MacCarthy Morroch 1998 3 P.M. SUNDAY, MARCH 238, 1999

Atlas of the Irish Rural Landscape
Cork University Press 1997

Ireland - Our Island Home
Photographic aerial tour of the coast
Kevin Dunge 1997

Bere Island
A Short History
Ted O'Sullivan 1992

Kay O'Brien has donated several beautiful books on Ireland:

Irish Life and Landscape

J. Crampton Walker

The Talbot Press

This book has wonderful Irish landscape prints and sketches by notables such as Na-
thaniel Horne, George Russell, G.F. Kelly Keating and others of the late 19th and
early 20th century.

Atlas and Cyclopedia of Ireland
Murphy and McCarthy NY 1903
Beautiful maps, pictures and coats of arms with a history of Ireland.

Editor's Note: The Museum now has a collection of approximately 100 books on Irish
history, landscape, etc. If anyone is interested in cataloguing these books, please
call me at 847-2890.



JOIN THE MUSEUM OF NEWPORT IRISH HISTORY

HELP US BRING THE STORY OF 350 YEARS OF IRISH HISTORY TO LIFE !!

NAME (S):
ADDRESS:
TOWN/CITY: STATE: ZIP;
Individual () $10.00/Year Family (J $20.00/Year Life (J $100.00
Amount enclosed: $ (Donations are tax-deductible)
Make checks payable to: The Museum of Newport Irish History
P.O. Box 1378
Newport, RI 02840
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